
 
 
 
 
 
 Please ask for: 

 Linda Coote 
 Direct dial: 

 (023) 9254 5340 
 Fax: 
 (023) 9254 5587 
 E-mail: 

  
  

22 June 2022 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Standards & Audit Sub Board 
DATE: 30 June 2022 

TIME: 6.00 pm 
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Linda Coote 
 
 
 
 
PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 
 
 
 

Councillor Mrs Cully 
Councillor Hylands 
Councillor Marshall 
 

Councillor Pepper 
Councillor Raffaelli 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 
 



Standards & Audit Sub Board 
30 June 2022 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

   

1.   ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN   

2.   APOLOGIES FOR NON ATTENDANCE   

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

4.   DEPUTATIONS- STANDING ORDER 3.4   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Tuesday 28 June 2022. The total 
time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes)  
 

 

5.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on 
Tuesday 28 June 2022 
 

 

6.   INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT OPINION 2021/22 AND 
UPDATE AUDIT STRATEGY (Pages 5 - 36) 

 

 To table the Annual Audit Opinion for 2021/22 for noting to the 
Members with responsibility for governance, as set out in 
Appendix A. 
 
To present the reviewed Audit Strategy to the board for approval, 
as set out in Appendix B. 
 

 

 

7.   ANY OTHER ITEMS   

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose 
 

To table the Annual Audit Opinion for 2021/22 for noting to the Members with responsibility for 
governance, as set out in Appendix A. 
 
To present the reviewed Audit Strategy to the board for approval, as set out in Appendix B. 
 

 

Recommendations 
 

The members note the Annual Audit Opinion 2021/22, as set out in Appendix A. 
 
The members approve the updated Audit Strategy, as set out in Appendix B. 

 
 
1. Background & Purpose 

 

1.1  The purpose of this report is to provide the Standards and Audit Sub Board with an 
overview of completed audit work in 2021/22. The report is a culmination of all the work 
undertaken by GBC Internal Audit for 2021/22 and is a requirement for the Annual 
Governance Statement and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. All work 
undertaken is in line with the Audit Charter, Code of Ethics and Strategy 

 
 

2. Report 
 

2.1       Appendix A is the Annual Audit Opinion 2021/22. 
2.2       Appendix B is the updated Audit Strategy 

  
 

 
3. Conclusion 

 
3.1       That the board note the Internal Audit Annual Opinion 2021/22. 
3.2       That the board approve the updated Audit Strategy 

 
 

Financial Services 
comments: 

Nil 

Legal Services comments: Nil 

Crime and Disorder: Nil 

Equality and Diversity: Nil 

Service Improvement Plan The delivery of the annual audit plan is a key function of the 

Board/Committee: Standards and Audit Sub Board 

Date of Meeting: 30th June 2022 

Title: Internal Audit Annual Audit Opinion 2021/22 and 
updated Audit Strategy 

Author: Chief Internal Auditor 

Status: FOR NOTING & APPROVAL 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



implications: service. 

Corporate Plan: It supports the Council in pursuit of excellence through delivering 
an effective and high quality governance evaluation and 
monitoring. 

Risk Assessment: The work performed by Internal Audit assists in reducing the 
overall risk exposure in the Council’s operations and provides a 
high degree of assurance to management in placing reliance on 
the adequacy of internal controls within their Services 

Background papers: None 

Appendices/Enclosures: Appendix A – Internal Audit Annual Audit Opinion 2021/22 
Appendix B - Audit Strategy 2022 
 

Report author/ Lead Officer: Paul Somerset - Chief Internal Auditor 

 

Page 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 
Gosport Borough Council - 

Annual Audit Report 

2021/22 

Paul Somerset 

Chief Internal Auditor 

P
age 7



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 2 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

 

Contents 
1. Background ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Annual Opinion 2021/22 - Reasonable Assurance .......................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

3. Results of the work carried out against plan 2021/22 .................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

4. Exception Analysis ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

5. Follow ups Overall results ............................................................................................................................................................................................................. 10 

6. Data Analytics / Continuous Auditing ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

7. Audit Updates since last meeting .................................................................................................................................................................................................. 13 

8. 2021/22 Follow-up Audits since last meeting ............................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

9. Unplanned reactive work .............................................................................................................................................................................................................. 18 

10. Areas of Concern in 2021/22 ......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 19 

11. Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) ............................................................................................................................................................ 20 

12. Public Sector Internal Audit Standards ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 22 

13. Assurance Levels ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 22 

 

 

 

 

P
age 8



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 3 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

 

1. Background 
1.1  Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

1.2 On 1st April 2013 the 'Public Sector Internal Audit Standards' (PSIAS) were formally adopted in respect of Local Government across the 

UK. The PSIAS apply to all internal service providers, whether in-house, shared services or outsourced. The Standards were revised from 

1 April 2016 to incorporate the mission of Internal Audit and Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing. 

1.3 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 Section 5, define the requirement for an internal audit function within Local Government 

stating that:  

'A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 

governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance' 

 

1.4 The responsibility for maintaining an adequate and effective system of internal audit within Gosport Borough Council lies with the 
Borough Treasurer (S151 Officer).  

 

1.5 The Chief Internal Auditor is responsible for effectively managing the internal audit activity in accordance with the ‘Definition of 
Internal Auditing’, the ‘Code of Ethics’ and ‘the Standards’.  

1.6 In accordance with the PSIAS the definition of Internal auditing is;  

'Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s 

operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve 

the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes'. 

P
age 9



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 4 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

1.7 In addition the Chief Internal Auditor will provide an Annual Internal Audit Opinion based on an objective assessment of 

the Authority's framework of governance, risk management and control.  

1.8 The Annual Internal Audit Opinion must incorporate; 

 The Opinion; 

 A summary of the work that supports the Opinion; and  

 A statement on conformance with PSIAS and the results of the quality assurance and improvement programme.  
 

1.9 Statement of Organisational Independence 

1.10 The Internal Audit Section has no operational responsibilities for any financial systems, including system development and installation. 

It does however provide advice on control implementation and risk mitigation where relevant and throughout the design and 

implementation stages of new systems. 

1.11 The Chief Internal Auditor is free from interference, although has due regard for the Authority's key objectives and risks and consults 

with Members and Officers charged with governance, when setting the priorities of the annual audit plan, for example; in determining 

the scope and objectives of work to be carried out and in performing the work and communicating the results of each audit 

assignment. There must be and is no compromise on the ability of Internal Audit to provide an independent assurance on the control 

framework. 

1.12 The Internal Audit Section has free and unfettered access to the s151 Officer, Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer, the Leader of the 

Council and the Chair of the Standards and Audit Sub Board.  

  

P
age 10



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 5 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

2. Annual Opinion 2021/22 - Reasonable Assurance 
2.1 During 2021/22, 22 audit reviews, 6 Grant sign offs & 5 full follow up reviews were undertaken and completed. 

2.2 85% of the audits undertaken achieved a level of ‘Full Assurance’ or ‘Reasonable Assurance and 15% of the audits completed resulted in 

a 'Limited Assurance' level. This is an increase of 13% of Full or Reasonable Assurance being given for audits on the previous year and therefore 

a reduction of 9% in 'Limited Assurance' results.  

2.3 The number of High risk exceptions raised has reduced from 19 to 17 this year and the number of Medium risk exceptions grew by 18. 

However 8 more pieces of audit work were completed in 2021/22 compared to the previous year so this will have contributed to this increase. 

2.4 The implementation of 'Agreed Actions' from previous year's audits has been low for another year. Only 29% of the agreed actions 

stated by Sections has been closed as part of the follow up testing undertaken, which is a minor increase from 27% in 2020/21. The reasoning 

given for the majority of the open exceptions is that sections are still managing their workload and resources since the pandemic. While this is 

understandable, the risks identified in the audits are current and should be prioritised and managed. A breakdown of these statistics is on page 

9. Given the continued low completion rate of previously raised issues, all follow up audits with open exceptions will be reported to the 

Corporate Governance Group for corporate oversight and action. 

2.5 Significant work and discussions have been held throughout the year to aid in the management of governance issues arising from the 

Covid 19 pandemic. A Covid summary report reviewed 7 areas including 6 substantial grants received as part of the Government response to 

the pandemic. The results of these were positive, especially with regards to confirming the eligibility of the grants paid. Any errors which were 

found within the grants reviews were highlighted to the service and steps have been taken to reclaim that money. Audit will continue to 

provide assurance on the grants into the 2022/23 Audit Plan. 

2.6 Four audit opinion levels are in place and these are: no assurance, limited assurance, reasonable assurance and full assurance. Where 

there are mainly medium or low risk exceptions the annual audit opinion would be reasonable or full assurance. 85% of audits completed 

obtained Reasonable or Full Assurance, therefore the Annual Audit Opinion for 2021/22 is Reasonable Assurance on the internal control 

governance and framework for risk management and control within Gosport Borough Council, however there needs to be an increase in 

completion level of actions from exceptions improves to maintain this level of assurance 

P
age 11



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 6 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

 
   

2.7 Internal Audit will continue to work with Section Heads, the Assistant Chief Executive and the Chief Executive to improve on specific 

areas of control, risk management and governance weaknesses 

2.8 Any significant corporate weaknesses and agreed actions will be reflected in the Annual Governance Statement. The impact of the 

Internal Audit work for 2021/22 may affect that year's work for External Audit. It may also inform their work for 2022/23 and where they 

consider there are weaknesses in control that could materially affect the accounts they may need to carry out further work to gain the 

necessary audit assurance required for a true and fair view of the financial position and compliance with professional codes of practice. 

 
 

 
 

  

No Assurance  Limited Assurance Reasonable Assurance Full Assurance 

P
age 12



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 7 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

3. Results of the work carried out against plan 2021/22 
3.1 During 2021/23, 33 audit reviews were performed with the following assurance levels noted. The graph compares the 

results to the 2020/21 audit plan where 25 audits were performed. 

3.2 The Authority should be aiming for a position where the significant majority of audits result in a Reasonable or Full Assurance level. As 

the above indicates, currently over 70% achieve this level. 

3.3  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  2020/21 2021/22 

Assurance 9 12 

Reasonable 
Assurance 9 16 

Limited Assurance 6 5 

No Assurance 1 0 

  Assurance 
Reasonable 
Assurance 

Limited 
Assurance 

No 
Assurance 

 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Assurance Reasonable Assurance Limited Assurance No Assurance

Assurance levels by past years 

2020/21 2021/22

P
age 13



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 8 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Full Audit 6 12 4 0 

Follow Up 0 4 1 0 

Grant 6 0 0 0 

 

0

5

10

15

20

Assurance Reasonable Assurance Limited Assurance No Assurance

Assurance Levels by Audit Type 

Full Audit Follow Up Grant

P
age 14



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 9 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

4. Exception Analysis 

  2020/21 2021/22 

Critical 1 0 

High  19 17 

Medium 31 49 

Low 20 21 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Critical High Medium Low

Exception Totals by year 

2020/21 2021/22

P
age 15



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 10 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

 

 

 

 

4.1. The results above show a total of 87 exceptions raised through 22 full audits completed during 2021/22. This equates to, on average, 

3.9 exceptions per audit. This is a slight increase from 3.7 exceptions per audit in 2020/21. 

 

 

 

5. Follow ups Overall results 
5.1 5 follow up audits were undertaken in 2021/22 which included 35 exceptions. The below graph and table shows the statistical results of 

those follow up audits. 

 

 

Open Pending 
In 
progress 

Closed 
Verified 

Closed not 
verified Closed Management Accept Risk 

 High Risk 0 1 5 1 0 1 
 Medium 

Risk 2 0 10 4 1 0 
 Low Risk 0 0 7 3 0 0 
 

 

2 1 22 8 1 1 Total 

P
age 16



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 11 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

 

5.2  Only 29% of the exceptions raised were closed as part of follow up testing. This leaves 71% where the risk still remains to 

the council. While it is under the changing priorities caused by the Covid Pandemic may have impacted on Section's ability to implement the 

agreed actions by the deadline set, open risks do need prioritisation within Sections objectives. Further follow ups on the remaining open 

exceptions will be undertaken within the 2022/23 audit plan, along with new follow ups on exceptions raised as part of audits in 2021/22. As 

an additional measure, any follow up audits which note open exceptions will be reported to the Corporate Governance Group for corporate 

oversight and any action deemed appropriate.  

 

 

F o l l o w  U p  C a t e g o r i e s  D e s c r i p t i o n  

Open No action has been taken on agreed action.  

Pending Actions cannot be taken at the current time but steps have been taken to prepare.  

In Progress Progress has been made on the agreed action however they have not been completed. 

Implemented but not Effective Agreed action implemented but not effective in mitigating the risk. 

Closed: Verified Agreed action implemented and risk mitigated, verified by follow up testing. 

Closed: Not Verified Client has stated action has been completed but unable to verify via testing. 

P
age 17



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 12 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

 

 

 

6. Data Analytics / Continuous Auditing 
6.1 IDEA data analytics was used throughout the 2021/22 financial year to aid Internal Audit in the completion of the plan while also 

increasing the scope of the audits covered. Data Analytics was successfully used in the following audits to allow for greater scope of 

testing in a shorter amount of time, thus aiding in the level of the assurance that could be placed on the audit testing results: 

 Accounts Payable 

 Payroll 

 Council Tax 

 NNDR 

 Accounts Receivable 

 

 

 

 

Closed: Management Accepts Risk Management have accepted the risk highlighted from the exception. 

Closed: No Longer Applicable Risk exposure no longer applicable.  

P
age 18



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 13 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

 

 

 

 

 

7. Audit Updates since last meeting 
Microsoft Teams - IT 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 3 2 1 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Limited Assurance  

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by August 2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  Reasonable Assurance  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Limited Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets Limited Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Limited Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

The high risk exceptions relate to a lack of Data Protection Impact Assessment, control over third party applications and a lack of corporate guidance on its usage. 

The medium risk exceptions relate to efficiency relating to user controls and staff training. 

FOI and SAR - Legal 

P
age 19



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 14 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 3 1 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance   

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 
implemented by September 2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  Reasonable Assurance  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Reasonable Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets NAT 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Reasonable Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

The medium risk exceptions relate to an error in the Councils Publication Scheme, a lack of evidence showing authorisations of FOI refusals and lack of overall 

monitoring on FOI's and SAR's. 

 

 

 

Social Media Surveillance - Executive 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 3 0 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance   

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 
implemented by September 2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  NAT  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Reasonable Assurance  

Safeguarding of Assets NAT 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Reasonable Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

The medium risk exceptions relate to social media guidance, policy and consideration for automating access controls to social media 

 

P
age 20



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 15 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

DSO - Streetscene 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 3 2 2 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Limited Assurance    

 
Agreed actions are 

scheduled to be 
implemented by October 

2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  Assurance   

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Reasonable Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets Limited Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

The two high risk exceptions relate to security and CCTV legislative requirements for the site, diesel stock control and no risk register for the service. The medium 

risks relate to reclaiming a historic balance and overall stock control. 

 

 

 

 

Hostels - Housing 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 4 0 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance   

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by October 2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  NAT  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Assurance  

Safeguarding of Assets Reasonable Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Reasonable Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data Reasonable Assurance 
 

The medium risk exceptions relate to recovery of debts, lack of disaster recovery plans, value for money on staffing and void turnaround times 

 

P
age 21



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 16 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

Partnerships - Executive  

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 3 0 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance   

 
Agreed actions are scheduled 

to be implemented by 
October 2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  Reasonable Assurance  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations NAT  

Safeguarding of Assets Reasonable Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Reasonable Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

The exceptions relate to updating the s113 agreement, reviewing SLA's & charging structure and consideration on monitoring performance and value of the 

partnership. 

 

 

Covid Assurance Grants - Corporate 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance   
 

 
 

 

 

Protect and Vaccinate Grant - Housing 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Assurance   
 

 
 

 

 

Covid Income Grant - Finance 

P
age 22



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 17 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Assurance   
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Coastline Water Safety - Streetscene 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 1 3 1 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Limited Assurance   

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 
implemented by September 2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  Reasonable Assurance  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Reasonable Assurance  

Safeguarding of Assets Limited Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations NAT 

Reliability and Integrity of Data Reasonable Assurance 
 

The high risk relates to the evidence of equipment safety checks and installations. The medium risk relate to maintenance of slipways, coastline safety policy and 

evidence of coastal water safety checks. 

 

P
age 23



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 18 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

8. 2021/22 Follow-up Audits since last meeting 
Leisure Centre Follow Up - Streetscene/Finance 

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 2 3 0 
 

Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the original 
audit was in September 2021. 

Original Assurance Level  Follow-up Assurance 
Level 

Limited Assurance  Reasonable Assurance 
 

  Follow Up Action 

Open Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

1 (medium) 0 2 (High) 0 2(medium)  0 0 0 
 

The open exception relates to central filing of documentation regarding the contract. The in progress exceptions relate to completing contract amendments and 

verifying the profit share calculations. 

 

9. Unplanned reactive work 
9.1 During the financial year 2021/23 the internal audit service aided the council in managing the Covid19 Pandemic by volunteering staff 

to undertaken work in other sections to assist with specific areas of work. These included: 

 Administration and Processing of Omicron Grant 

 Administration and Processing of Local Council Tax support grant 

 Administration and Processing of Self Isolation Payment Scheme 

 

9.2 It is estimated that approximately 80 staff days were volunteered to assist in the administration of multiple grants which has resulted in 

these number of days not being used to perform the Internal Audit service. Due to hard work of the internal team and use of the 

partnership with PCC Internal Audit,  the full audit plan was completed. 

P
age 24



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 19 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

10. Areas of Concern in 2021/22 
 
Procurement 
Original audit 2020/21 Assurance Level - No Assurance  

 

10.1 The results of the audit showed that compliance to the Contract Procedure Rules was low as significant spend was not being put out 

to contract, cumulative spend did not appear to be considered, and that in the majority of cases which used the new system, an open 

invitation was not used and suppliers were requested to bid for contracts.  This demonstrates that the application of the new system is still 

a work in progress and requires continued attention. 

10.2 In addition, the current contract register was not complete and did not include significant current contractors. For contracts that are 

included on the register, there was often missing details or information which is required. 

10.3 There was also currently no proactive monitoring of procurement compliance across the Authority and therefore a lack of visibility to 

both senior management and Members on the Council's compliance to its Contract Procedure Rules. Lastly, the audit established that 

while the Council has clear Contract Procedure Rules, it did not have a Procurement Strategy setting out how the council planned to use 

procurement to meet its organisational needs and objectives. 

10.4 The findings of the report were shared with senior management who are aware of the work still needing to be done and an action 

plan to address the issues is being created.  

10.5 External Audit (Ernst and Young) conducted a follow up audit as part of their audit plan in 2021/22 on the action plan created by the 

council and determined that:  

'As at the completion of our work in January 2022, of its thirteen actions: 

 Two were rated ‘Complete’  

 Seven were ‘In Progress’ 

 Four had ‘Not Yet Started’ 
 

A number have been subject to delays between action plan updates.  

P
age 25



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 20 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

 
The evidence on which our view is based:   

 

 Internal Audit’s review of Procurement, published 8 July 2021 

 Our review of the Council’s progress against the subsequent Action Plan  

The impact on the Gosport Borough Council:   
 

The Council’s procurement process is at risk of challenge by external suppliers, residents and the public. 
 

The action the Council needs to take to address the weakness. 
 

The Council needs to continue to implement the remaining items from the Action Plan in response to Internal Audit’s procurement review, 
responding to the weaknesses identified. 

 
Both Members and senior management should take a lead role promoting the updated procurement strategy and contract procedure rules, 

so that their application reinforces a change towards a compliance culture regarding procurement' 

 

10.6 As a result of the above, a full audit will be conducted on Procurement as part of the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan, which will focus on both 

the action plan and conduct more recent transactional testing on compliance with the Procurement Contract Regulations. 

 

 

 

11. Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) 
11.1  Throughout the financial year, a skill gap analysis has been undertaken on the skills within the audit team. This has allowed the audit 

P
age 26



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 21 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

plan and audits to be assigned to the auditor with the most suitable skills while also securing specialist skills from the 

partnership with the Portsmouth City Council Audit service. In addition, this analysis has identified areas of training for 

the auditors within the team. 

 

11.2 Feedback received from stakeholders, such as audit clients and the chair of the Standards and Governance committee, have been 

positive on the audit processes and the service will continue to obtain feedback throughout the year to ensure the continuous 

improvement of the service where applicable. 

In addition to this, quality and improvement requirements are assessed by means of: 

 

a. Sign off by the Chief Internal Auditor of all key stages of an audit, for example the scope of work and level of testing to be 

performed, the conclusion of the work and opinion formed followed by a review of the draft and final reports. 

b. Weekly or bi-weekly 1:1s with all members of staff 

c. Annual performance reviews of all staff, including the identification and provision of training. The majority of training needs are 

provided by a combination of external professional studies, supporting by in-house provisions and mentoring.  

d. An annual skills gap analysis across the team, (this includes the wider team in Partnership with PCC) to determine specific potential 

shortages or gaps. Whilst no major gaps are noted at present, historical gaps in areas such as project auditing, contract auditing 

and IT auditing have been identified following the departure of employees (including retirement). These shortfalls have been 

addressed by specified recruitment, bespoke training or if required short term, by means of additional sign off/ mentoring of staff. 

Areas requiring improvement for this year's assessments are noted below, Skills Gap Analysis Results   

e. All staff complete an annual declaration of interests including a nil return, to avoid any impingement on independence or conflict 

of interest. 

 

 

P
age 27



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 22 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

 

12. Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
  

12.1 Under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS, the Standards) Standard 1310 requires that, as part of the quality assurance and 

improvement programme internal and external assessments (of conformance with the PSIAS) must be undertaken. Standard 1311 allows 

for periodic self-assessments, which for Gosport Borough Council has carried out each year since a full external assessment in 2019. The 

results of the self-assessments have been communicated annual alongside the annual audit opinion to this committee.  

12.2 Standard 1312 requires that an external assessment must be conducted at least once every five years by a qualified, independent 

assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation. The Standards state that a qualified assessor demonstrates competence in 

two areas; the professional practice of internal auditing and the external assessment process. Competence can be demonstrated through 

a mixture of experience and theoretical learning. An independent assessor means not having an actual or perceived conflict of interest 

and not being part of, or under the control of, the organisation to which the internal audit activity belongs. During 2018/19 an external 

assessment was undertaken on Gosport Borough Council's Internal Audit Service which highlighted areas for improvement, all of which 

were implemented and reported to this committee.   

 

 

 

 

13. Assurance Levels 
Internal Audit reviews culminate in an opinion on the assurance that can be placed on the effectiveness of the framework of risk management, control and 
governance designed to support the achievement of management objectives for the area under review. 

P
age 28



 

  

 

 

P a g e  | 23 

 

Assure 

Alert 

Advise 

 

A s s u r a n c e  L e v e l  D e s c r i p t i o n  /  E x a m p l e s  

Assurance 
No issues or minor improvements noted within the audit but based on the testing conducted, assurance can be placed that the 
activity is of low risk to the Authority 

Reasonable Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified but overall the activities do not pose significant risks to the Authority 

Limited Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified which pose a more significant risk to the Authority 

No Assurance 
Major individual issues identified or collectively a number of issues raised which could significantly impact the overall 
objectives of the activity that was subject to the Audit 

NAT No areas tested 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit Strategy June 2022 - Author:  
Paul Somerset (Chief Internal Auditor)   

1 | P a g e  
 

 

1. Purpose and mission 
The purpose of the Internal Audit Strategy is to outline the strategic approach that will be adopted 
by the Chief Internal Auditor in managing and delivering the Internal Audit Service. The strategy 
works in conjunction with the audit charter. The mission of Internal Audit, as defined by the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards, is "to enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-
based and objective assurance, advice and insight." 

2. Values to meet  
Gosport Borough Council has outlined 5 core values as part of the Council Plan on a page. These 
values are Ambitious, Supportive, Collaborative, Adaptable and Efficient.  
The Internal Audit function will operate under these values at all times to aid the Council in 
achieving its five strategic priorities: Raise Aspirations, Enhance the environment, empower our 
residents, develop the economy and deliver effective services. 
 

3. Objectives 
The key objectives of the Internal Audit department are to facilitate: 

 A sufficient review of the Authority’s functions in order to form an annual opinion on the 
effectiveness of the control framework. This opinion forms part of the Annual Governance 
Statement, which is a statutory requirement and must incorporate a statement on Internal 
Audits conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 An assurance on the organisations governance and control arrangements, including risk 
management, through the annual audit plan in a way that gives suitable priority to the 
organisations objectives and risks 

 Improvement of the organisations governance, control and risk management, by highlighting 
any exceptions raised during testing to line management and agreeing mitigating actions 

 Effective co-operation with external auditors   
 Reactive work such as general advice, consultancy services and investigations that add value 

to the organisation in meeting its objectives and aims to improve governance and risk 
management 

 Horizon scanning to ensure the inclusion in the audit risk analysis of key areas likely to 
impact on the organisation, including emerging areas of fraud and theft. 

 

4. Audit Planning 
The Chief Internal Auditor is required to produce an annual plan of audit assignments for each 
financial year. The Audit Plan will define the Audit Title and a proposed duration of the audit based 
on the risk assessment that was undertaken at Audit Universe Stage. 
The Audit Universe is a collection of all the auditable activities within the Organisation. The Audit 
Universe is generated by the Chief Internal Auditor via research, experience, Local Authority 
knowledge, consultation with Senior Management and Councillors. The Audit Universe is always 
evolving based on information gained as part of ongoing consultation with staff, managers and 
senior officers. 
On an annual basis, all the activities within the Audit Universe will be risk assessed using a scoring 
criteria with 1 being low and 5 being high. The assessment will include consideration of the following 
areas: 

 Financial Risk 
 Operational Risk 

Page 31



Internal Audit Strategy June 2022 - Author:  
Paul Somerset (Chief Internal Auditor)   

2 | P a g e  
 

 

 Legal Risk 
 Health and Safety Risk 
 Reputational Risk 
 Political Risk 
 Environmental Risk 

The total value of these scores will then be put through a multiplier which will be based on the last 
time the area was audited and the results of that audit. 
Audit scores will then be reviewed to determine which will be deemed as High Risk and therefore 
will be considered for the Audit Plan. 
The Annual Audit Plan will cover between 20-25% of the total population of the audit universe, as 
agreed with the s151 Officer and Audit and Standards Sub Board. 
Risk areas and levels in Local Authorities are ever evolving and as such, there is flexibility in the 
Annual Audit plan to allow for audit assignments to be deferred, added or amended. All changes to 
the Audit Plan will be presented to the Audit and Standards Sub Board. 
 

5. Exceptions 
Should any risks be identified as part of the auditing process, they will be highlighted to 
management during the audit and in the final report that will be produced. These will be raised as 
exceptions/issues and will be given a risk level and a category in relation to the control framework. 
Internal audit operates with 4 Risk Levels: 

Priority Level Description 

Critical Risk Control weakness that could have a significant impact upon not only the system 
function or process objectives but also the achievement of the organisation’s 
objectives in relation to: 

 The efficient and effective use of resources 
 The safeguarding of assets 
 The preparation of reliable financial and operational information 
 Compliance with laws and regulations 

And corrective action needs to be taken immediately. 

High Risk Action needs to be taken to address significant control weaknesses but over a 
reasonable timeframe rather than immediately.  These issues are not “show 
stopping” but are still important to ensure that controls can be relied upon for the 
effective performance of the service or function.  If not addressed, they can, over 
time, become critical.  An example of an important exception would be the 
introduction of controls to detect and prevent fraud.  

Medium Risk These are control weaknesses that may expose the system function or process to a 
key risk but the likelihood of the risk occurring is low.  

Low Risk - 
Improvement 

Very low risk exceptions or recommendations that are classed as improvements that 
are intended to help the service fine tune its control framework or improve service 
effectiveness and efficiency.  An example of an improvement recommendation 
would be making changes to a filing system to improve the quality of the 
management trail.  

 
Any audit which contains a critical risk exception, will be reported in full to the Audit and Standards 
Sub Board at the next available meeting to ensure suitable visibility and oversight of the issue is 
raised at the appropriate forum. 
All exceptions raised will require an 'Agreed Action' to be completed by the Audit Client, along with a 
timescale for implementation. Using an agreed action, rather than a recommendation, allows the 

Page 32



Internal Audit Strategy June 2022 - Author:  
Paul Somerset (Chief Internal Auditor)   

3 | P a g e  
 

 

clients to determine how best to mitigate the risk identified, using their in-depth knowledge of the 
activity. 
In the event where management decide not to take any action against an identified issue/risk 
resulting from an audit assignment, this will be reported to the s151 for comment prior to the issue 
of the report. 
 

6. Follow ups 
Any audit report that identified a High Risk exception will be followed up to review progress of the 
agreed actions. Follow up testing for High Risk exceptions will be conducted in the following financial 
year. 
If a Critical Risk is identified, internal audit will follow up the agreed action within 3 months of the 
issue date to review progress. 
Statistics on the completion of the 'Agreed Actions' will form part of the Audit Plan Progress reports 
and Annual Audit Opinion report, along with updates to the Corporate Governance Group consisting 
of Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer, s151 Officer and Chief Internal 
Auditor. 
If actions remain open after a follow up audit, a 2nd follow up audit will be completed to further track 
the action. Should actions remain open after 2 follow up audits, the issue will be raised to the Chief 
Executive 
 

7. Resources & Skills 
The current Internal Audit team has 1.75 FTE and is managed by a Chief Internal Auditor (provided 
by Portsmouth City Council). The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards for Internal Audit in the UK 
requires that staff are suitably qualified and experienced. The Chief Internal Auditor and Senior 
Auditor both hold the relevant qualification (i.e. MIIA or CCAB). In the event of a resourcing shortfall 
and/or a skills gap, GBC will be supported by Portsmouth City Council where all officers utilised hold 
a relevant full or part qualification. The internal audit department is resourced to cover high risk 
areas identified as part of the Audit Universe outlined above.  
 
Skills within the audit team are assessed as part of the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme (QAIP), referenced in the Audit Charter. Audit assignments are allocated based on the 
skills and resources available.  Specialist auditing areas, such as contract or IT audit, will be 
resourced externally if the need arises including under the current partnership arrangements with 
Portsmouth City Council. 
 
Due to the team being small in numbers, the Chief Internal Auditor will ensure there is suitable 
rotation of audits between the team on an annual basis. Internal Audit staff will be required to 
declare, on an annual basis, any areas of audit where they do not feel they can be objective within 
Gosport Borough Council. If an issue is identified, the Chief Internal Auditor will risk assess and either 
reappoint an auditor to that assignment, or implement other mitigating actions to deal with the 
potential issue. 
Any continuing professional development (CPD) requirements for the team will be considered as 
part of the QAIP and Training Plans outlined in section 10 
 

Page 33



Internal Audit Strategy June 2022 - Author:  
Paul Somerset (Chief Internal Auditor)   

4 | P a g e  
 

 

8. Audit Opinions and Annual Opinion 
Each audit undertaken will result in an Audit Report. Testing undertaken within the audit will be 
given an assurance level based on the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls tested under the 
following control framework headings: 
• Achievement of organisations strategic objectives 
• Reliability and integrity of financial and operational information; 
• Effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes;  
• Safeguarding of assets; and   
• Compliance with laws, regulations and rules, policies, procedures and contracts. 
 
The Audit will then be given an assurance level based on the risk posed to the Authority, based on 
the findings and the auditors' opinion. These assurance levels are: 

Levels: Description / Examples 

Assurance No issues or minor improvements noted within the audit but based on 

the testing conducted, assurance can be placed that the activity is of 

low risk to the Authority 

Reasonable Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified but overall the activities do 

not pose significant risks to the Authority 

Limited Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified which pose a more 

significant risk to the Authority 

No Assurance Major individual issues identified or collectively a number of issues 

raised which could significantly impact the overall objectives of the 

activity that was subject to the Audit 

 
 
 
The overall Annual Audit Opinion will be delivered in the Annual Report and will be based on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of controls tested within the control framework. The Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 require that Internal Audit provide independent assurance on the control 
framework (the Audit Opinion) for inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) therefore, 
the priority for the Audit Service must be to carry out and achieve the planned work as contained in 
the Annual Audit Plan  
 
The opinion will be based on the completion of the Audit Plan, assurance levels of the completed 
audits, the number of exceptions raised, the results of follow up audits, the level of external 
assurances gained and the number of investigations undertaken within that year. 
The Annual Opinion will also follow the framework of the above Assurance Levels. 

9. Additional   
The statutory work of the internal audit department is outlined in the Audit Charter based on the 
requirements defined in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The statutory Audit work will 
always be the main priority of the department, however in addition to the statutory duties; many 
audit departments logically have involvement/manage the following areas on behalf of the 
Authority: 

 Administration of the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) for Gosport Borough Council 
 Involvement on Project Boards for key projects undertaken by the Council 

Page 34



Internal Audit Strategy June 2022 - Author:  
Paul Somerset (Chief Internal Auditor)   

5 | P a g e  
 

 

 Corporate Fraud Investigations 
 Certification of Grant Claims 
 Regulatory Investigative Powers Act (RIPA) 
 Anti-money Laundering 
 Annual Governance Statement 
 Whistleblowing Policy and management 

 

10. Training & CPD 
Staff training will be considered as part of the QAIP, as detailed in the Audit Charter. A mix of 
professional (Accountancy, Institute of Internal Auditors, IT Audit) training will be combined with in 
house training provided by senior members of the team.  
 

11. Advice & Consultancy 
Internal Audit will also provide advice on risk and controls as required by the Authority. These may 
occur outside of the audit plan and will be recorded individually if the advice requires more than a 1 
hours resource from internal audit staff. Totals of this additional work will be reported to the Audit 
and Standards Sub Board on an annual basis. Advice given will also be used as part of the risk 
assessment during the composition of the annual audit plan. 
In addition to advice, internal audit may also work on a consulting basis with the authority in relation 
to risk, control and process. Consultancy will generally occur during the design and implementation 
of a large project such as the implementation of an IT system. By consulting in the plan and design 
stage, internal audit and the Authority can gain assurances that’s risks are identified and acted upon 
prior to implementation. Any consultancy activities will also be reported to the Audit and Standards 
Sub Board and results of which will be used in forming the Annual Audit Opinion. 
 

Signatures 

Chief Internal Auditor |  Date 

 

Chair of the Audit and Standards Sub Board   |  Date 

 

Borough Treasurer & s151 Officer |  Date 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Internal Audit Annual Audit Opinion 2021/22 and Update Audit Strategy
	Appendix A GBC Annual Report 2022 v2
	Appendix B GBC Audit Strategy June 22 v1


